
 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

April 11, 2011 
 
The Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary District will hold a regular 
meeting at 6:30 p.m., Monday, April 11, 2011, at the District Offices, 500 
Davidson Street, Novato. 
 
Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection in the 
District Office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato, during normal business hours. They 
are also available on the District’s website:  www.novatosan.com. 
 

AGENDA 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL: 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please observe a three-minute time limit): 
 

 This item is to allow anyone present to comment on any subject not on the 
agenda, or to request consideration to place an item on a future agenda.  
Individuals will be limited to a three-minute presentation.  No action will be 
taken by the Board at this time as a result of any public comments made. 

4. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

5. REVIEW OF MINUTES: 
 

a. Consider approval of minutes of the March 30, 2011 meeting. 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

The Manager-Engineer has reviewed the following items. To her 
knowledge, there is no opposition to the action. The items can be acted on 
in one consolidated motion as recommended or may be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and separately considered at the request of any person. 
 
a. Approve regular disbursements and ratify March 2011 payroll and 

payroll related disbursement. 
b. Approve meeting dates of April 20th at 6:30 PM and 25th at 4:30 PM, 

2011. 

7. WASTEWATER FACILITIES UPGRADE PROJECT 72609: 

a. Review bids received and authorize contract award to lowest 
responsive bidder. 



AGENDA/Board of Directors 
April 11, 2011 
 

2 

8. STAFF REPORTS: 

a. Legal costs for employment issues. 

9. MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

10. ADJOURN: 
 
Next resolution no. 3029  
 
Next meeting date:  Monday, April 20, 2011, 6:30 PM at the Novato Sanitary 
District office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato, CA 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District at (415) 892-
1694 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  Notification prior to the meeting will 
enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. 
 
 
 



 

March 30, 2011 
 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District was held at 
6:30 p.m., Monday, March 30, 2011 at the District offices, 500 Davidson Street, Novato. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  President William C. Long, Members Michael Di 
Giorgio, James D. Fritz, George C. Quesada and Dennis Welsh.   
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Manager-Engineer-Secretary Beverly B. James, Deputy Manager-
Engineer Sandeep Karkal, District Counsel Kent Alm and Administrative Secretary Julie 
Borda. 
 
ALSO PRESENT:   Dean Heffelfinger, Novato resident 
 Jo Heffelfinger, Novato resident 
 Brant Miller, Novato resident 
 Bill Scott,  Novato resident 
 Alex DiGiorgio, San Francisco resident 
 Aaron Winer, Veolia Water 
 John O’Hare, Veolia Water 
 John Bailey, Veolia Water 
 Melissa Demsky, Veolia Water 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL:   
 
On motion of Member Quesada, seconded by Member Fritz and carried unanimously, 
the agenda was approved as mailed. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
 
An individual addressed the Board and discussed a budget amendment which was 
approved at the March 2, 2011 Board meeting.  She questioned the Manager’s authority 
to approve the expense.  She questioned how the District approves expenditures and 
stated she felt there was a transparency issue. 
 
Alex DiGiorgio, recent UC Berkeley graduate and a certified specialist in Clean 
Technology Law and Environmental Policy congratulated Member Fritz on his 
retirement.  Mr. DiGiorgio stated he is working to assist wastewater treatment plants cut 
costs through sustainable development and hopes to discuss this issue further with the 
District. 
 
Bill Scott, Novato resident, discussed contractors which the District uses for projects.  
He asked if the District had a review process in place to monitor contractors so when 
projects are awarded, the District can be made aware of previous errors by the 
contractor before awarding the contract. 



March 30, 2011 
Page 2 

 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 
 
Member Quesada stated the District should utilize natural gas powered vehicles.  He 
stated that services stations should be mandated by law to dispense natural gas 
products.  He stated that a law should be made to require all vehicles manufactured and 
sold in California be fueled by 25% natural gas. 
 
Member Welsh commented on the change of the Board meeting date from March 28th 
to March 30th, stating that the Board had not approved the meeting date change.  He 
requested the Board remain consistent with their meeting dates.  He stated that he has 
not received a complete set of Board policies which would address this issue. 
 
District Counsel Kent Alm stated that all public agencies are required to have a regular 
meeting date as adopted by Resolution.  He stated, however, that it is not infrequent to 
modify meeting dates for the convenience of the Board and staff.  He noted that a 
meeting not held at the regular date should be classified as a Special Meeting.  He 
stated that a Special Meeting agenda can address most items from a regular meeting 
agenda.   
 
The Manager stated that under District Board policy, the board meeting dates are set by 
the Board President in consultation with the District Manager.  She noted that in the 
future, the current agenda will list the next meeting date, not as a Consent Calendar 
item, but as a notation at the end of the agenda and will not require a board action. 
 
Member Welsh requested the Board review the criteria for changing a regular board 
meeting date.  President Long requested that the April 11th Board meeting agenda 
include an item to discuss the protocol for setting regular Board meetings.   
 
President Long discussed a letter from Sustainable Novato addressed to the State 
Water Resources Quality Control Board (SWRQCB) in Sacramento.  The letter 
requested the SWRQCB continue to be diligent in the matter of open allegations 
regarding possible unreported and unresolved sewage spills by the Novato Sanitary 
District.   President Long stated that the allegations of criminal conduct without any 
substantiation border on liable and that there may be a need for legal action directed 
toward the author of the letter.   
 
Member Di Giorgio discussed the letter from Sustainable Novato and noted that the 
legal fees associated with responding to such allegations are passed on to the Novato 
rate payers. 
 
Member Welsh stated that the letter from Sustainable Novato addresses incidents from 
2007 which were investigated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and were 
recently passed to the Regional Water Quality Control Board.   
 
REVIEW OF MINUTES: 



March 30, 2011 
Page 3 

 
- Consider approval of minutes of the March 5, 2011 meeting.  Member Quesada noted 
that the March 5th minutes stated he abstained from the motion to approve the Agenda 
of that meeting.  He requested the minutes be revised to show he did not abstain from 
that motion.  Julie Borda, the Board Recorder, stated the minutes would be revised as 
follows:  On motion of Member Fritz, seconded by Member Di Giorgio and carried 
unanimously, the agenda was approved as mailed. 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Quesada, and carried 
unanimously, the minutes of the March 5, 2011 meeting were approved as revised. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Quesada and carried 
unanimously, the Board approved the following Consent Calendar item: 
 
 a.  Approval of regular disbursements in the amount of $116,067.08 and the 

approval of project account disbursements in the amount of $96,309.42. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
- Consider adoption of a Resolution of Appreciation for retiring Board Member James D. 
Fritz.  The Manager read Resolution No. 3029, A Resolution Commending Mr. James 
D. Fritz for Distinguished Service as a Member of The Board of Directors of Novato 
Sanitary District. 
 
Member Fritz thanked the Board and stated he has benefited from his association with 
the Novato Sanitary District.   
 
Member Quesada stated he would like to see Member Fritz’s numerous photographic 
contributions acknowledged. 
 
Member Di Giorgio stated he will miss Member Fritz’s knowledge of hydraulics and 
stated he has been a good friend and a good Rotarian. 
 
Member Quesada stated that Member Fritz is a great historian and commented on 
Member Fritz’s visits to historical battle sites. 
 
President Long expressed his appreciation to Member Fritz and stated he has valued 
Member Fritz’s participation on the Board.  President Long discussed Member Fritz’s 
initial selection to the Board of Directors and stated he will be missed. 
 
- Election of President Pro-Tem.  Member Fritz nominated Member Mike Di Giorgio as 
President Pro-Tem.   
 



March 30, 2011 
Page 4 

- Consider procedure for filling the vacancy on the Board of Directors.  The Manager 
stated that Member Fritz had notified the District of his intention to retire from his 
position as of April 1, 2011.  She stated that this is 214 days prior to the next general 
election in the District which is set for November 1, 2011.  The Manager outlined District 
actions as required by California Government Code Section 1780.  She discussed the 
two options available to fill the vacancy:  1) call an election; or 2) appoint a replacement.  
She stated that staff recommends the Board proceed with the appointment process in 
accordance with the outlined schedule and direct staff to post a notice soliciting 
applications for the vacancy in at least three conspicuous locations in the District.  She 
stated that the notice would be posted at both Novato public libraries, a the City of 
Novato office, in the Novato Advance and the Marin Independent Journal as well as 
online in the Novato Patch.   
 
She outlined the schedule to proceed with the candidate selection, noting that interested 
applicants will be required to submit an application to the District office by 4:30 p.m. on 
April 15, 2011.  She stated that the Board will review the applications and interview the 
applicants at an open public meeting scheduled on Wednesday, April 20, 2011 at 6:30 
pm.  She stated that the Board would then make an appointment to fill the vacancy at 
this same meeting. 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Welsh and carried 
unanimously, the Board directed staff to proceed with the Board Member appointment 
process in accordance with the schedule as outlined above and post a notice soliciting 
applications as noted above. 
 
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 
 
- Wastewater Operations Committee report.  The Deputy Manager-Engineer outlined 
the Monthly Operations Report for February 2011, as presented to the Wastewater 
Operations Committee at their regular meeting on March 21, 2011.   
 
The Board discussed the report.  John Bailey, Plant Manager, Veolia Water, discussed 
a repair to a boiler unit at the facility.   
 
The Deputy Manager discussed the Collection System Operations report and noted that 
the length of sewer lines cleaned in February had increased over the prior month. 
 
The Deputy Manager stated that the odor control bed rehabilitation was completed and 
the unit was put back into service on February 28th.   
 
- Presentation on Criticality Assessment.  John Bailey, Plant Manager, stated that 
Veolia has completed a Criticality Assessment of the Novato treatment plant.  He gave 
a brief overview of the assessment, stating that the evaluation looked at consequence 
of failure and likelihood of failure for all equipment at the District facility.  He introduced 
Melissa Demsky of the Asset Management Group, Veolia Water.   
 



March 30, 2011 
Page 5 

Ms. Demsky noted that her team works on implementing the asset management 
program as adopted by Veolia Water N.A. and stated it is a “best in class” program.  
She outlined the mission for asset management and discussed how asset management 
protects and extends the life of the company’s assets.  She discussed the asset 
management model and outlined the integration of Veolia, the treatment facility, and the 
District.  Ms. Demsky discussed the criticality analysis ranking and how it functions in 
relation to the equipment at the facility.  She discussed steps Veolia will take as it 
moves forward to protect the treatment facility equipment and processes. 
 
Member Welsh questioned if this program was included in our current contract.  John 
Bailey stated that yes, the implementation of this program is currently part of the Veolia 
contract.  Member Welsh commented that he felt this program was not necessary due 
to the District’s current maintenance program and the expertise of the Operators.  He 
stated that the District’s maintenance management programs have been successful in 
the past. 
 
President Long remarked that he was grateful for the overview and the attention to 
detail that Ms. Demsky applied.   
 
Member Di Giorgio stated that the California Sanitation Risk Management Authority 
(CSRMA) has required sanitation districts to utilize this type of criticality asset 
management prior to insurance liability coverage.  He stated that one of the reasons the 
District chose Veolia Water for the management of the new facility was because of the 
programs, such as this, that they include as part of their contract.   
 
President Long stated he hopes to be able to use this asset management program on 
the District’s pump stations. 
 
NPDES PERMIT: 

- Consider authorizing Barg Coffin Lewis & Trapp LLP to provide legal services in 
connection with the Administration Civil Liability case from the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board.  The Manager discussed the Regional Water Quality Control Board’s 
intent to issue an Administrative Civil Liability in connection with sanitary sewer 
overflows that occurred between September 24, 2007 and February 28, 2010.  She 
stated that District staff and District Counsel have been in discussion with Regional 
Board staff and State Board Counsel since that time.  She noted that recently the State 
Board Counsel indicated they intend to include discussion of the matter referred to them 
by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and since Davina Pujari of Barg Coffin 
Lewis and Trapp LLP is already well versed in this matter, staff recommends engaging 
this firm to prepare for and attend the meeting scheduled in April.  She noted that 
Meyers Nave was only peripherally involved and does not have the same depth of 
knowledge in the EPA matter as does Barg Coffin. 



March 30, 2011 
Page 6 

The Manager noted that the estimated cost of the work was initially set at a not to 
exceed amount of $30,000 but with additional information provided from Barg Coffin 
prior to the Board meeting, the estimate has been changed to $57,000.  She requested 
the Board authorize legal services to Barg Coffin Lewis and Trapp LLC in an amount not 
to exceed $57,000.  She stated that there is $79,000 remaining in the 2011-12 budget 
for legal services. 

District Counsel Kent Alm stated that for purposes of discussion, the matter being 
investigated by the EPA is the alleged reporting failure of the 2007 overflows.  He stated 
it was in the District’s best interest to have Barg Coffin represent them in this matter as 
Barg Coffin had much more knowledge on the matter than he. 

District Counsel stated he believes the EPA has not indicated that this matter could not 
be discussed publicly.  Mr. Alm stated that there is a pending action by the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board and they have not given the District any indication of the 
nature of the investigation.   

Member Welsh questioned how the Board could approve an expenditure of $57,000 to 
Barg Coffin if the Board did not have full knowledge of the charges in need of 
representation.   

The Board discussed the legal services being considered and the matters under 
investigation. 

Jo Heffelfinger, Novato resident, stated she felt Member Di Giorgio expressed disdain 
for governmental officials.  She stated she is disappointed in Member Di Giorgio’s 
comments. 

An individual expressed his support for the District’s decision to authorize Barg Coffin to 
represent them at the Regional Board for the pending matter.  He stated the public 
should know the detail of the circumstances of the pending matter and requested the 
information be posted on the District website. 

An individual discussed the alleged unreported spills in 2007 and the Regional Board’s 
involvement with the matter.  She stated the EPA investigation is closed and requested 
the documents in relation to this matter be released and placed on the website.  She 
stated the public should know what the attorney expenses where for.   

An individual stated he had written to the EPA with a Public Records Act Request for 
documents relating to the investigation but that the EPA denied his request.  He stated 
he would like to know the details of the investigation.  He stated he feels the District is 
being run by competent individuals and does not feel that there was any misconduct by 
the District. 

Member Di Giorgio stated he feels the public should know the details of the 
investigation.  He commented on the initial criminal allegations brought by the EPA and 
supported Barg Coffin’s participation at the Regional Board meeting. 



March 30, 2011 
Page 7 

 
Member Welsh commented on the initial information gathered by Barg Coffin in regards 
to the EPA allegations/investigation and asked District Counsel if the information 
gathered could be released to the Board and the public. 
 
In response to the request for release of documents, the District Counsel stated that the 
information gathered by Barg Coffin was mostly public records and some personnel 
records.  He noted that personnel records are always confidential.  He stated that the 
legal conclusions from Barg Coffin’s investigation is called work product and is held in 
confidentiality by the Board under the attorney/client privilege.   He stated that if the 
Board decided as a whole, to release the work product, the information could become 
public.  He stated this is not typically done but there is no law prohibiting the action.  
 
Mr. Alm discussed his present involvement with the Regional Board as directed by the 
District.  He discussed the Administrative Civil Liability suit that was filed in the fall of 
2010 and the recent overflows as discussed at previous board meetings. 
 
On motion of Member Fritz, seconded by Member Di Giorgio and carried with the 
following vote, the Board authorized the Manager-Engineer to execute a contract with 
Barg Coffin Lewis & Trapp LLP to provide legal services in connection with the 
Administrative Civil Liability case from the Regional Water Quality Control Board in an 
amount not to exceed $57,000.  Ayes:  Di Giorgio, Fritz, Long, Quesada.  Noes:  Welsh. 
 
STRATEGIC PLANNING: 
 
- Consider accepting a proposal from Rauch Communications to guide the District in the 
preparation of a Strategic Plan.  The Manager noted that the District’s current Strategic 
Plan was completed in 2001 and that the Board had included funding in this year’s 
budget to update the District’s Strategic Plan.  She noted that a preliminary Strategic 
Planning Workshop was held on March 5th and was facilitated by Martin Rauch of 
Rauch Communications.  The Manager stated that the objective of the Strategic Plan is 
to develop a strategic guideline that staff can use to implement a work plan for the next 
five years.  She discussed the outline the Strategic Planning meetings would take.  She 
stated that the estimated cost for this work will be $15,960 and she recommends 
accepting the proposal from Rauch Communications for work on a time and materials 
basis with an amount not to exceed $18,000 without further authorization. 
 
Member Di Giorgio stated that a strategic planning session should involve the entire 
Board and requested Martin Rauch schedule the session after the board member 
vacancy is filled.   
 
Member Welsh commented on the topic and scale of the strategic planning session.  He 
stated that the scope of the session should focus on a smaller scale, such as the future 
of the District’s pump stations.   
 



March 30, 2011 
Page 8 

President Long and Member Di Giorgio stated that the Board needs to examine and 
commit to the future growth of the District in regards to asset management, asset 
preservation and private lateral issues. 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by President Long and carried 
unanimously, the Board accepted a proposal from Rauch Communications to guide the 
District in the preparation of a Strategic Plan for work on a time and materials basis with 
an amount not to exceed $18,000. 
 
RECYCLED WATER: 
 
Consider approval of revision to the NMWD Agreement.  The Manager requested this 
item be removed from discussion and placed on the agenda for the April 11th board 
meeting.   
 
LEGISLATIVE ISSUES:   
 
- Consider approval of a letter supporting AB 741 (Huffman).  The Manager noted that 
Assemblyman Huffman is authorizing AB 741.  She noted that this bill would aid the 
financing of private sewer improvements by expanding existing law to allow property 
owners to voluntarily enter into agreements with local wastewater agencies to finance 
needed sewer improvements.  She requested the Board authorize the Manager to send 
letters to Assembly Member Huffman and Senator Leno in support of AB 741. 
 
Member Welsh noted that in the past, the District had done studies which detailed the 
causes of infiltration during wet weather events.  He stated that the conclusion of these 
studies was that six inch, eight inch and larger lines that were beneath the water table 
caused a great amount of water infiltration.  He did not feel the laterals were the cause 
of increased flow and did not support the Board’s position on passage of AB 741. 
 
President Long called for the question and the Board voted to approve the letter 
supporting AB 741 (Huffman), as follows:  Ayes:  Di Giorgio, Fritz, Long, and Quesada.  
Noes:  Welsh. 
 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
The Manager reported that President Long and herself were in Sacramento on behalf of 
the North Bay Water Reuse Authority meeting with Assembly Member Huffman, 
Assembly Member Wes Chesbrough, Assembly Member Michael Allen, Senator Leno, 
and Senator Noreen Evans.  She noted that the Prop 84 bonds for recycled water are 
moving forward and that the North Bay Water Reuse Authority is expected to be 
awarded $2,000,000 for the Phase One projects.  She noted that Novato Sanitary 
District and the North Marin Water District can expect approximately $500,000 of the 
award.   The Manager outlined the next steps involved in the recycled water project and 
the critical dates associated with the steps.    
 



March 30, 2011 
Page 9 

Member Di Giorgio stated he attended a recycled water meeting which was chaired by 
Drew McIntyre of the North Marin Water District.   
 
MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
- North Bay Water Authority will hold a meeting on Friday, April 1st, at 9:30 a.m. in 
Petaluma.  She noted that the speaker will be Tom Gandesbery.  
  
- The Manager invited everyone in attendance to celebrate Member Fritz’s retirement by 
enjoying a piece of cake.   
 
ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business to come before the Board, President 
Long adjourned the meeting at 9:15 p.m.  
 
        Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

Beverly B. James, Secretary 
 
Julie Borda, Recording 



Date Num Name Credit

Apr 11, 11
4/11/2011 52641 RMC Water & Environment, I... 34,468.73
4/11/2011 52622 J&M Inc. 31,782.20
4/11/2011 52625 Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver ... 13,987.82
4/11/2011 52638 PSC 13,392.70
4/11/2011 52623 Johnson, Dee 7,265.88
4/11/2011 52642 Royal Petroleum Company 6,543.77
4/11/2011 52640 Rauch Communication Cons... 6,446.16
4/11/2011 52643 Shape Incorporated 4,776.30
4/11/2011 52649 Veolia Water North America, ... 4,282.54
4/11/2011 52637 Preferred Benefit 3,853.89
4/11/2011 52617 Harmony Press 3,670.00
4/11/2011 52633 Pacific, Gas & Electric 3,390.69
4/11/2011 52628 North Marin Water District Pa... 3,157.00
4/11/2011 52602 Cagwin & Dorward Inc. 2,659.00
4/11/2011 52605 Charles Z. Fedak & Company... 2,612.00
4/11/2011 52639 R3 Consulting Group, Inc. 2,395.36
4/11/2011 52621 Irvine Consulting Services Inc. 2,160.00
4/11/2011 52614 Frontier Analytical Laboratory... 2,000.00
4/11/2011 ach Bowens, Kenneth 1,980.00
4/11/2011 52647 Unicorn Group 1,868.31
4/11/2011 52624 Liebert, Cassidy, Whitmore 1,812.58
4/11/2011 52626 MME 1,803.60
4/11/2011 52616 HACH/American Sigma Inc 1,767.53
4/11/2011 52607 Comet Building Maintenance,... 1,395.00
4/11/2011 52595 3T Equipment Company Inc. 1,236.42
4/11/2011 52655 Water Components & Buildin... 1,149.80
4/11/2011 52611 EOA, Inc. 1,141.81
4/11/2011 52618 IEDA, INC 1,020.00
4/11/2011 52656 Zenith Instant Printing, Inc. 962.52
4/11/2011 52653 Verizon California 836.82
4/11/2011 52652 Verizon CA Pump Stations 827.92
4/11/2011 52606 Cintas Corporation 695.60
4/11/2011 52635 Pini Hardware 638.46
4/11/2011 52654 Vision Service Plan 618.49
4/11/2011 52600 BoundTree Medical, LLC 582.51
4/11/2011 52646 U.S. Bank Card (2)(June) 505.26
4/11/2011 52650 Verizon 392.25
4/11/2011 52603 CDW Government, Inc. 342.61
4/11/2011 52630 Occumetric 320.00
4/11/2011 52615 Grainger 312.96
4/11/2011 52599 Barnett Medical LLC 295.00
4/11/2011 52629 Novato Disposal- 282.00
4/11/2011 52597 American Sentry Systems, Inc. 270.00
4/11/2011 52598 AT&T Mobility 265.62
4/11/2011 52627 North Marin Water District 234.52
4/11/2011 52634 Petty Cash 229.98
4/11/2011 52604 CED Santa Rosa, Inc 169.52
4/11/2011 52645 U.S. Bank Card (1)(Bev) 168.35
4/11/2011 52596 Alhambra 165.49
4/11/2011 52620 Industrial Scientific, Corp 157.21
4/11/2011 52619 Ikon Office Solutions 153.37
4/11/2011 52612 Federal Express 124.90
4/11/2011 52651 Verizon Business 124.54
4/11/2011 52632 Orkin Pest Control, Inc. 105.45
4/11/2011 52613 Foster Flow Control 91.41
4/11/2011 52636 Pitney Bowes Reserve Account 90.12
4/11/2011 52610 CWEAmembers 76.00
4/11/2011 52631 One Stop Auto Service Inc. 64.88
4/11/2011 52608 Cook Paging 59.47
4/11/2011 52609 CWEA 40.00
4/11/2011 52644 T-Mobile 22.69
4/11/2011 52648 United Parcel Service 11.34

Apr 11, 11 174,256.35

Novato Sanitary District
04/08/11 Check Register

April 11, 2011

Page 1



Date Num Name Credit

Apr 11, 11
4/11/2011 2167 RMC Water & Environment, I... 88,657.99
4/11/2011 2165 CDW Government, Inc. 7,395.00
4/11/2011 2166 HDR EngineeringInc 758.68

Apr 11, 11 96,811.67

Novato Sanitary District
04/08/11 Check Register

April 11, 2011

Page 1



Date Num Name Credit

Apr 8, 11
4/8/2011 3098 Di Giorgio, Michael 1,545.62
4/8/2011 ACH Long, William C 1,397.82
4/8/2011 3099 Fritz, James O 954.43
4/8/2011 3100 Welsh, Dennis J 676.15

Apr 8, 11 4,574.02

Novato Sanitary District
04/08/11 Check Register

April 8, 2011

Page 1





NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE: Consent Calendar: Board Meeting 
schedule 

MEETING DATE:  4/11/2011 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. :        

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the meeting dates and times of April 20, 2011 at 
6:30 PM and April 25, 2011 at 4:30 PM. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
At the Board meeting of March 30th, the Board approved the schedule for recruitment and 
appointment of a Board Member to fill the remaining term of retired Board Member Jim Fritz.  
The date for interviews and possible appointment of a new Board Member was set for a 
Special Board Meeting to be held on Wednesday, April 20, 2011 at 6:30 p.m.  This meeting is 
in addition to the two regularly scheduled Board meetings.  
 
There is a conflict with the time of the regularly scheduled Board meeting set for 6:30 p.m. on 
Monday, April 25th in that the President and one other Board Member have scheduling 
conflicts.  It is therefore proposed to change the time of the April 25th meeting from 6:30 to 4:30 
p.m.  
 
There is no statute regulating the scheduling of Board meetings.  The Board meeting schedule 
is generally adopted by Board resolution which may be changed if necessary.  It is appropriate 
to consider revising the resolution if there is likelihood of a long-term conflict with Board 
Member attendance.  Otherwise, it is customary and appropriate to change a meeting date or 
time to resolve unavoidable conflicts.        
 
 

ALTERNATIVES:     N/A 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  N/A 

DEPT. MGR. : MANAGER’S APPROVAL: 

 



NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE:   Wastewater Facilities Upgrade 
Project No. 72609 – Phase 1 
Landscaping Project 

MEETING DATE:   April 11, 2011 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.:   

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Review bids received, authorize contract award to the lowest responsive 
bidder, North Bay Landscape management, Inc, and authorize Manager-Engineer to execute contract. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
At its March 2, 2011 meeting the District Board authorized staff to advertise for bids for the project. On 
April 5, 2011, 4 bids were received as follows:  
  

1. North Bay Landscape Management, Inc.:      $50,950.00 
2. Neary Landscape, Inc.:                                  $64,390.00  
3. Gardener’s Guild:                                           $70,891.00  
4. Cagwin & Dorward                                         $85,076.00 

 
North Bay Landscape Management Inc. of Petaluma submitted the lowest responsive bid of $50,950 
or $19,050 (27%) below the estimate of probable construction cost in the amount of $70,000.00 for 
this work and $13,440.00 (<21%) below the next highest bidder.  North Bay Landscape’s bid 
documents have been reviewed and they are in order.  
 
Therefore, it is recommended that the Board award the Wastewater Facilities Upgrade Project No. 
72609 – Phase 1 Landscaping Project t to North bay Landscape Management with a bid of $50,950, 
and authorize the Manager-Engineer to execute the contract. 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES:  N/A. 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  The project will be funded from the FY 10-11 Budget for Project No.  
72609, which includes a budget amount of $6,000,000. 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 



NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE: Staff Report: Attorney’s fees MEETING DATE:  April 11, 2011 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. :        

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  information only 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION: 
 
As was reported to the Board of Directors at their meeting on March 2, 2011 legal expenses for 
the 2010-11 fiscal year were exceeding the budgeted amount and staff requested and the 
board approved amending the budget to cover the increase. Subsequently questions were 
raised regarding the additional legal expenses related to personnel issues that totaled $68,644 
and specifically if these expenses exceeded the authority of the Manager-Engineer. The 
attached table shows the breakdown of these expenses.  
 
As noted in the attached table, all of the expenses with the exception of the work done by 
Rene Sloan Holtzman Sakai LLP were within the signing authority of the Manager-Engineer. 
This item ran over budget by $1,337.95.  

ALTERNATIVES:  NA 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  NA 

DEPT. MGR. : MANAGER’S APPROVAL: 

 

s:\boardagendapackets\2011\04112011\staff report-legal costs.doc 



Macintosh HD:Users:bevj:Library:Caches:TemporaryItems:Outlook Temp:Personnel legal expenses 2010-11.xls

Novato Sanitary District
Detail of legal expenses for Labor and Employment issues ($68,644)
July 1, 2010 through December 31, 2010

July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Total:

Meyers Nave:
  Personnel Investigation & Discipline 3,843.50 425.00 1,375.00 300.00 325.00 6,268.50
  Severance/Settlement Issues 1,381.00 50.00 1,431.00
  General Labor & Employment Advice 3,825.00 12,050.32 3,431.37 7,975.00 27,281.69

Pass through costs - Meyers Nave:
  (personnel investigation/discipline)
  Debra Estrin Investigations 2,324.40 2,324.40
  Renne Sloan Holtzman Sakal LLP 24,026.00 7,311.95 31,337.95
    (public law group)

5,224.50 4,250.00 13,425.32 27,757.37 17,986.35 68,643.54


	Agenda
	3-30-11_minutes
	operatingcks0411
	projectcks0411
	boardcks
	Payroll disb
	Board Meeting Schedule
	NTP Phase 1 Landscape Award
	Staff Report-legal costs
	Personnel legal expenses 2010-11



